ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COVM TTEE
April 15, 2009
8:02 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Paul Seaton, Chair
Representati ve Cat hy Engstrom Munoz, Vice Chair
Representative Bryce Edgnon

Representati ve Wes Kel |l er

Represent ati ve Peggy W1 son

Representative Robert L. "Bob" Buch
Representative Berta Gardner

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 206

"An Act establishing a career assessnent requirenent in public
schools; and relating to postsecondary courses for secondary
school students.™

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 206

SHORT TITLE: HI GH SCHOOL ASSESSM T/ POSTSECONDARY CLASS
SPONSOR(s) : EDUCATI ON

03/ 25/ 09 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 25/ 09 (H) EDC, FIN

03/ 27/ 09 (H) EDC AT 8:00 AM CAP| TOL 106

03/ 27/ 09 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 27/ 09 (H) M NUTE( EDC)

04/ 03/ 09 (H) EDC AT 8:00 AM CAP| TOL 106

04/ 03/ 09 (H) Heard & Hel d

04/ 03/ 09 (H) M NUTE( EDC)

04/ 15/ 09 (H) EDC AT 8:00 AM CAP| TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

DI ANNE BARRANS, Executive Director

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -1- April 15, 2009



Post Secondary Educati on Commr ssion

Department of Education and Early Devel opnment ( DEED)

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON  STATEMENT: O fered advice during the hearing on HB
206.

EDDY JEANS, Director

School Finance and Facilities Section

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opment ( DEED)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
206.

MARSHA OLSON

Teachi ng/ Lear ni ng Support (TSL)

Departnment of Education and Early Devel opnent (DEED)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
206.

DAVI D ARP, Busi ness Manager

Sitka School District

Sitka, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 206.

SAI CHI OBA, Assistant Vice President

of Student Services & Enroll nment Managenent

Uni versity of Al aska (UA)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 206.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8:02:59 AM

CHAI R PAUL SEATON called the House Education Standing Conmttee
neeting to order at 8:02 a.m Representati ves Seaton, Buch,
Gardner, Edgnon, and Keller were present at the call to order.
Representatives Minoz and WIlson arrived as the neeting was in
pr ogr ess.

8:03: 25 AM

HB 206- H GH SCHOOL ASSESSM T/ POSTSECONDARY CLASS

CHAI R SEATON announced that the only order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 206, "An Act establishing a career assessnent

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 2- April 15, 2009



requirenent in public schools; and relating to postsecondary
courses for secondary school students.™

8:03: 39 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER noved to adopt the proposed commttee
substitute (CS) for HB 206, Version 26-LS0765\E, M schel
4/ 10/ 09, as a working docunent. There being no objection,
Version E was before the commttee.

8:03:48 AM

CHAI R SEATON described the changes nade in Version E. The
first, in Section 1, subsection (b), changed |anguage so that
the school district in which the student is enrolled in
secondary school shall "make arrangenent for the fees for the
appropriate postsecondary courses in which the student enrolls"”
[under AS 14.03.074], rather than "pay the course fees". Chair

Seaton explained that sone people interpreted the original
| anguage as saying the school districts would have to pay full
tuitions and could not nake other arrangenents. The ot her
change, he noted, was the addition of Section 2, which is
related to the intent of HB 215 to provide incentives for
school s to keep students from droppi ng out of school.

8:05: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER opi ned that "shall make arrangenents for
the fees" is anbiguous and that a school district nmay not
understand its obligations.

8:07:53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE MUNCZ said she received feedback from the schoo
district in her constituency that it wanted to "have nore
i nvol venent . "

8:08: 00 AM

CHAI R SEATON directed attention to the commttee packet and the
e-mails received since the |ast hearing. He said he thinks the
question regarding fees wll be a good one to address with the
State Board of Education & Early Devel opnent during an interim
nmeeti ng.

8:09:24 AM

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 3- April 15, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER stated that she supports the idea of
havi ng career preparedness assessnents; however, she suggested
that an exchange versus the addition of nore assessnents would
be prudent.

CHAI R SEATON agreed. He explained that this assessnent has been
indicated as a neans to provide direction for vocational
educati on. He said an e-mail forwarded from Representative
Munoz, in the commttee packet, indicates that Al aska needs to
decide between the H gh School Gaduation Qualifying Exam
(HSGQE) or the WrkKeys Assessnent System "WrkKeys. "

8:11:41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked if the results of the WrkKeys test
are primarily to help students decide their course or whether it
is for another purpose. He recommended consideration be given
to creating an incentive for taking the test, such as making it
a requirenment toward receiving a schol arshi p.

CHAI R SEATON noted that approximtely 70 percent of students do

not attend postsecondary education. The idea has been to use
WrkKeys as a tool to assist students in assessing their own
pat h. The other aspect would be whether to use it as an
attachnment to the high school diplona. The HSGQE al so plays a
part in this picture. WrkKeys can also be applied to
post secondary entry situations; it appears to have nmultiple
uses. At the base of the issue is a non-effective HSGXE that

has stinmulated interest in an alternate assessnment approach.
Enmeshi ng WorkKeys may be the best way to address the interest
of all students, he proffered. In response to a question from
Representati ve Munoz, he said WrkKeys was going to be given to
el eventh-graders, but its admnistration has been postponed a
year because of assessnment tool difficulties. Wor kKeys can be
given to students at various tinmes, he said; a student's highest
score would go on his/her transcript. He said a conbination
test, such as the Prairie State Achievenent Test, nay be better.
The intent is to continue the discovery of what wll best work
for the goals established by the commttee.

8:19: 19 AM
CHAIR SEATON, in response to Representative Mnoz, cited
| anguage on page 1, lines 9-10, of Version E, which read:

The conmmi ssioner shall select for use in the

state an assessnment designed to neasure a student's

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -4- April 15, 2009



| evel of preparedness to make the transition to work
or coll ege.

CHAI R SEATON said it is not specified that the assessment mnust
be WbrkKeys. In response to a followup question, he said
Version E would require that the assessnment would be on the
transcri pt. He said he thinks the intent of the bill is to
"bring vocational education direction down through the school
career." The attenpt is to inplenent an appropriately
stratified assessnent test, and al so provide exit information.

8:23:02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON suggested the discussion surrounding this
concept is just beginning.

CHAI R SEATON responded that he expects to have ideas generated
fromwhat is on the table as a tenpl ate.

8:23: 59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to adopt [Conceptual Anmendnent 1],
to insert |anguage on page 2, following line 7, which would:
"provide the Al aska Post-Secondary Comm ssion with a report that
is useful in determning eligibility for schol arshi ps".

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER said since there may be conpetition anong
districts, it seenms like the issue needs to be a statew de
responsi bility. In response to Chair Seaton, he said he thinks
t hat | anguage would be different from the |anguage on page 2,
i nes 8-10, which read:

(3) provide a report to each student on the
results of the student's assessnent, based on
nationally recognized <criteria for evaluating a
student's preparedness to nmake the transition to work
or coll ege.

8:28: 07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER, in response to Representative Buch,
explained that he anticipates a nerit-type schol arship program
that will also be needs based. He said he sees the benefit of
utilizing the data from the exit testing. He said the details
could be worked out but the concept is that the WrkKeys test
m ght reveal when a student is not be able to pass one aspect of

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 5- April 15, 2009



the test, but excels in another, thereby providing quantitative
information that could be used to help that student.

8:29:59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH said he is contenplating where all these
assessnments should begin. He reviewed the idea that the
assessnents can be used to follow the career of each student.

CHAI R SEATON said he presunes that if the department plans to
provide each student an assessnent, it would submt that
information to the postsecondary officials.

8:32: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER said he would like the results of the test
to be used as a "scholarship carrot for kids that excel in
particul ar areas."

8:34: 33 AM

DI ANNE BARRANS, Executive Director, Post Secondary Education
Comm ssion, Departnment of Education and Early Devel opnent,
suggested including test results on a student's transcript,
because a transcript is a standard docunent. She relayed that a
separate application is not needed for the Al askAdvantage
Education Gant - a needs-based grant. Every student is
encouraged to conplete the federal application for federal aid,
to ensure they receive the full array of aide available to them
The nane of each Alaskan student who conpletes that form is
added to a pool of nanmes of eligible students. St udents who
attend an Alaskan institution "cue up for that." Secondary
institutions identify those students who neet the current
criteria for academ c excellence through Schol astic Achi evenent
Test (SAT) or Anerican College Testing (ACT) scores. A WrkKeys
score above a certain level also "flips that switch to academc
excel | ence. " MVs. Barrans said these records are Kkept
el ectronically, and she encouraged the committee to "adopt
practices that would just Ileverage the efficiency of that
exi sting system™

8:36: 56 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked if M. Barrans would recommend additiona
| anguage to ensure clarity in the bill.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 6- April 15, 2009



M5. BARRANS said she is not certain what additional |anguage, if
any, is needed. She said the department is working on creating
a database that would allow information sharing of student data;
however, she said that may be a few years away.

8:38:10 AM

CHAI R SEATON said he thinks Representative Keller's idea is to
make data avail able to the departnent.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER confirned that is correct. He said he
thinks the idea to have the information on the student's
transcript is great.

VB. BARRANS suggested |anguage <could be added so that
information is conveyed to the Post Secondary Comm ssion for the
purposes of determning eligibility "as needed."

8:39:10 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER suggested that the departnent may need to
know an aggregate nunber if, for exanple, there were a program
that selected the top 10 percent of students.

M5. BARRANS responded that the comm ssion would not need to know
the aggregate; it would just need to know "the score above which
the top 10 percent sit." She said she thinks the comm ssion
would be able to "develop an interface with the departnent” in
order to access that information.

8:40: 03 AM

CHAI R SEATON proffered that conceptually it would be useful to
have | anguage that would provide, as needed, information to the
Al aska Comm ssion on Post-Secondary Education that would be
useful for schol arship determ nation

M5. BARRANS sai d yes.

8:40: 23 AM

CHAI R SEATON noted that Conceptual Amendnent 1 would add a new
subsecti on.

8:40: 53 AM

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -7- April 15, 2009



CHAI R SEATON asked if there was any objection to Conceptua
Amendnent 1 to Version E. There being none, it was so ordered.

8:41: 54 AM

CHAI R SEATON directed attention to the | anguage on page 2, |ines
11-12, which read as foll ows:

(d) The results of a student's car eer
prepar edness assessnent shall be displayed in sumary
formon the student's high school diplom

CHAI R SEATON questioned whether the |anguage "and transcript”
needs to be added to ensure that the results are noted on a
student's transcript.

8:42:31 AM

EDDY JEANS, Director, School Finance and Facilities Section,
Depart ment of Educati on and Early Devel opnent ( DEED)
recommended that the words "and on the transcripts" be added
now, if that is the intent of the commttee, so that the State
Board of Education can consider those words when it neets during
the upcoming interim to speak about and formalize an official
position on this particular issue.

8:43:46 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER noved to adopt [ Conceptual Anendnent 2],
as foll ows:

On page 2, line 12, after "high school™
Del ete "di pl oma"
I nsert "transcript”

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER opined that it is nore inportant to have
the information noted in a transcript than on a diplona, since
the transcript is nore readily avail abl e and used.

8:44:27 AM

CHAI R SEATON objected to Conceptual Anendnent 2. He expl ai ned
that the focus of the commttee is to encourage students to
graduate, and if the |anguage sinply states "transcript”, the
results will be listed whether or not the student graduates. He
said he does not think it would detract fromthe intent to |ist
both "di pl oma"™ and "transcript”.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 8- April 15, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER suggested that a diploma is a docunent
that people frame and put on the wall, and therefore they my
not want their test scores posted on it. Nevert hel ess, she
indicated that the commttee is in the wearly stages of
di scussing the issue.

REPRESENTATI VE MUNQOZ and [ AN UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER] concurr ed.
8:45: 31 AM

CHAI R SEATON sought the will of the conmttee.

8:45:46 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER stated support in having the information
listed on both the diploma and the transcript.

CHAI R SEATON reiterated that [having the information |isted on
both the diploma and the transcript] is gernmane to addressing
t he drop-out issue.

8:46:49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER said she understands that the conmttee
is ultimtely working on drop-out prevention However, she
stated that the testing is an assessnent, not a pass/fail test,
whi ch provides information to students, parents, and the schoo
district, regarding a student's strengths and weaknesses. She
remarked, "The diploma is sonething el se again."

REPRESENTATI VE EDGMON agreed that a diploma is a comenorative
docunent .

CHAI R SEATON reiterated that a di pl oma represents graduati on.
8:48: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE MUNQZ expressed her preference that the scores be
recorded only on the transcript and not on the diplonma, which
she agreed is nore of a comenorative docunent.

8:49:12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON indicated that it would be nore
appropriate to require the information be put on the student's

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -9- April 15, 2009



transcript, since there is other information on the transcript
that may be of interest.

8: 50: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH noted that currently school districts have
two commenorative docunents: a diplomm and a certificate of
at t endance. The latter is given to a student who does not

graduate, in appreciation of the tinme he/she spent in school.
He opined that records should be kept in a usable form on a

docunent t hat provides information appropriately through
el ectroni ¢ searches. He questioned how rmuch informtion should
be added to a diplona. He said it seens the committee is

attenpting to acknow edge the assessnent process, and he
guesti oned how that would be denoted on a diplom. He concurred
with those commttee nenbers who acknow edged the diploma as a
commenor ati ve docunent .

8:52: 07 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked if there was any objection to Conceptual
Amendnent 2.

[ AN UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER] obj ect ed.
8:52: 35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noted that this issue has been debated
national ly.

8:52: 51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER said [placing a student's assessnent
results on his/her transcript] wuld be I|ike printing a
legislator's election results on the comrenorative docunent,
which the |ieutenant governor signs, followng a legislator's
swearing in oath.

8:53:29 AM

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Buch, Grdner,
Munoz, WIson, Edgnon voted in favor of Conceptual Anendnent 2.
Representatives Keller and Seaton voted against it. Ther ef or e,

Conceptual Amendnent 2 was adopted by a vote of 5-2.

8:54:41 AM

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 10- April 15, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON directed attention to the | anguage on page
1, lines 6-8, of Version E, which read as foll ows:

Sec. 14. 03. 073. Secondary st udent career
assessnent. (a) Each school district in the state
shall require students in grade 12 to conplete a
career preparedness assessnent as described in (b) of
this section.

REPRESENTATI VE EDGMON questioned whether it would be helpful to
add the l|anguage "after graduation from high school” follow ng
"assessnent” if the intent is to assess the students after they
gr aduat e.

8:56: 06 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON suggested that it may be difficult to get
students to return for a test once they have graduat ed.

8:56: 32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGMON then directed attention to |anguage on
page 2, lines 8-10, which read:

(3) provide a report to each student on the
results of the student's assessnent, based on
nationally recognized <criteria for evaluating a
student's preparedness to make the transition to work
or coll ege.

REPRESENTATI VE EDGMON suggested adding the |anguage "after
graduation from high school"™ to the word "col |l ege".

8:57.04 AM
MR. JEANS told Representative Edgnon that the definition of

graduation from high school is "neeting the course requirenents
pl us passing the high school qualifying exam" A student that

meets all the course requirenents gets a certificate of
at t endance. He said he does not think Representative Edgnon
intends to limt the work-ready assessnent to only those who
graduate; every student should take the assessnent. He added,

"“And, based on your previous anendnent, you want it reflected on
all their transcripts.”

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON responded, "That's fine, thanks."

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -11- April 15, 2009



8:58:23 AM

MR. JEANS, in response to Chair Seaton, stated that currently
districts are required to provide the WrkKeys assessnent to
students in the eleventh grade. He said that nakes sense,
because that gives children an idea of where they are going to
score. He said if it were up to him he would admnister the
assessnent to students twice - once in eleventh grade and once
in twelfth - and then take the higher of the two scores. He
offered his understanding that the range of scores is three to
seven in three categories.

9: 00: 06 AM

MARSHA QOLSON, Teaching/Learning Support (TSL), Departnent of
Education and Early Devel opnment (DEED), told the commttee that
she works in the current technical education units in the
departnment and has been working with WrkKeys for a couple
years. In response to Chair Seaton, she stated that according
to reqgulations, a student nust take [the assessnent] in the
el eventh grade and may take it one nore tine at the state's
expense. Currently, that expense is $5.00 per test per student,
which is $15.00 for the group of tests. Fol l owi ng exit of the
school system if a student wants to retake the WrkKeys test,
he/she would have to do so at a job center or another testing
center, which may include additional fees.

9:01: 55 AM

M5. OLSON, in response to Chair Seaton, said ACT is the official
keeper of scores; however, she said she does not know whet her
ACT keeps a student's highest score or his/her |atest score.
She offered to check with the conpany. |In response to a follow
up coment from Chair Seaton, she said the departnent owns the
data pertaining to test scores and, thus, has imedi ate access
to it.

9:03: 53 AM

MR. JEANS said current regulation requires eleventh graders to
be administered the test, with an option for themto retake it.
He offered his understanding that when the student can retake
the test is not in regulation, and he suggested that that nay be
a better time frame then requiring them to take it in the
twel fth grade. The el event h-grade assessnent could be used as
baseline information listed on transcripts.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -12- April 15, 2009



9: 05: 03 AM

IVS. COLSON, in response to Representative WIson, sai d
regul ations do not specify at which point in eleventh grade a
student has to take the assessnent.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON suggested that if the assessnent is not
adm nistered early in the eleventh grade, then some children
m ght not have enough tinme to anmend their course of study. She
opined that the tenth grade m ght be a better level at which to
gi ve students the test.

9:06:18 AM

MR. JEANS said there is another assessnent, the Wrldw de
Interactive Network (WN), which is aligned with WrkKeys, and
he indicated that it nust be given to students in sixth and
ei ght h grades. Because of that, he said, he does not think the
timng of the test given in eleventh grade is an issue.

9:07:32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON questioned why, if the one test is given
in sixth and eighth grades, the other is not given in tenth
grade, with the option for the student to take it again in the
twel fth grade.

M5. OLSON offered her understanding that tenth graders take the
HSQE and ot her standards-based assessnents, and the State Board
of Education & Early Devel opnent did not want to overload tenth
graders with yet another nmandated test.

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON then said she hopes schools consider
adm nistering the assessnent within the first nonth of eleventh
gr ade.

9:08: 28 AM

CHAI R SEATON rem nded the conmttee that the proposed bill does
not specify WrkKeys, it would sinply require an assessnent
regarding applied nmathematics, reading for information, and
information finding. Therefore, if another neans is discovered,
the comm ssioner will have the latitude to decide what test wll
be i npl enent ed.

9: 09: 34 AM

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 13- April 15, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE BUCH indicated that in ternms of the assessnent,
he supports not including exclusionary |anguage.

9:10: 09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE MUNQZ stated her understanding that the ultimte
intent is to provide vocational opportunities to students headed
in that direction. She said students are given the assessnent
when in the eleventh grade, in order for skills to be identified
and fostered, but questioned how the repetition of the
assessnment in the twelfth grade wuld "tie in wth the
avai lability of those courses."”

9:10: 47 AM

CHAI R SEATON spoke of the effort to get students actively
involved in achievenent and to prevent students from dropping
out of school anytinme after taking the HSGQE in el eventh grade.
He said people have related through past testinony that if
"everything's neasured in eleventh grade,” then senior year does
not mean anything to sone students.

9:13:28 AM

REPRESENTATI VE MJUNOZ opined that the assessnment should be
provided in eleventh grade so that students can be aligned with

vocational |earning opportunities while they are still in high
school

9:14: 31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH pointed out that on page 2, line 10, the
| anguage includes "college". He said the commttee 1is

acknow edging that the current system has not been working and
is attenpting to make it nore responsive to what the state's
requi rements should be. He questioned why students are dropping
out of school and what kind of a product the state has as a
result of allowing students to advance from high school [when
they are not prepared to do so]. He said he agrees with Chair
Seaton that a credible assessnent is not currently avail able,
and he said the legislature is responsible for the system

9:17: 02 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER stated that the committee is putting

forth an effort to reconstruct a system that is not currently
wor ki ng for sone students. Testing el eventh-graders can provide

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -14- April 15, 2009



assessment scores to alter the direction they are headed and
hel p keep them engaged. She stated that college-bound students
al ready know their path by eleventh grade, and the assessnent
may highlight their strengths and weaknesses and point them
toward a suitable field of study. She questioned what the
assessnents can do for those students who don't even nmake it to
el eventh grade, because "we've already mssed them by eleventh
grade. "

9:19: 03 AM

CHAIR SEATON, in response to Representative WIlson, clarified
what the adopted Conceptual Amendnment would do, and he stated
his intent to hold the bill through the interim

9: 20: 22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER requested that the bill be divided into
two separate bills with the issue of drop-outs and how the
students are doing in one, and the matter of conputations in
anot her.

9:20: 59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON st at ed support of that idea, and indicated
that one of the bills may not have a fiscal note, while the
ot her woul d.

9:21:22 AM

CHAI R SEATON offered his understanding that if the question was
di vided, Sections 2 and 3 would be included in a separate bill

Section 1 would becone a bill solely addressing the issue of the
prevention of student drop-outs. He indicated that having all
the sections together in one bill acts as a "dollar incentive

for districts to maintain their nenbership and not have drop-
outs.”

9:24:12 AM

MR. JEANS, in response to a question from Representative Edgnon

stated that if the bill was divided, there would be two fisca

not es: one from Assessnent and Accountability and one from the
School Finance and Facilities Section.

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON asked if there would be a fiscal note for
"the assessnment portion of the bill."

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -15- April 15, 2009



MR. JEANS replied that he does not think so, because districts
are currently required to admnister the assessnent to students
in eleventh grade. He said he thinks if |egislation passed that
required the assessnent for twelfth graders, then the departnent
woul d anmend its regulations to reflect that change. However,
the department currently intends for all districts to provide
for the assessnment in the eleventh grade, with the opportunity

for students to retake it. In response to a follow up question
M. Jeans said any fiscal note pertaining to [Sections 2 and 3
of HB 206] would be mninml, because he offered his

understanding that there would not be a requirenent for
addi ti onal resources for the departnent.

9:26:31 AM

CHAI R SEATON, in response to Representative WIson, outlined the
three disparate portions of the bill: page 1, line 5, through
page 2, line 12, regarding career assessnent; page 2, lines 13-

24, regarding enrolling in postsecondary institutions; and page
2, beginning on line 25, providing an incentive for schools to
keep students in class past an Cctober count date. Al three
portions address different tangents related to graduation.

9:27: 45 AM

MR. JEANS reiterated that there would be two fiscal notes from
two separate sections of the departnent.

9:28:10 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to adopt Anendnent 3, to divide the
bill into two parts "as per the sem-colon in the title."

9:28: 30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER obj ect ed. She said she understands the
second aspect of the bill is also an effort to inprove
graduation rates. Al t hough that portion of the bill deals wth
t he fundi ng process, the focus is still the sane.

9:29: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER responded that the spirit is different
Regarding "the second half of the bill,"” he said, "You have to
start with the premse that the school districts are pushing
kids out,” which he said "doesn't fit." He stated, "It my be

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 16- April 15, 2009



true, but ... I'd like us to go forward with a positive bill
where we're |ooking at getting involved with the kids and
hel ping them out, ... rather than being a police action in the
school district."

9:29: 42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER r esponded t hat she appreci ates
Representative Keller's concern and does not want anyone to
think she does not think teachers are doing what they can to
keep children in school. She described part of the bill as a
nmeans to "build ... into the system an additional little piece
of incentive for themto focus on retention."

9:30: 16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON renarked that HB 206 is on its way to
becoming an omibus bill on education, wth one portion
addressi ng assessnents and the other addressing student counts.
He opined that those points nerit two separate di scussions going
f orward. He said he thinks at this point he supports
Representative Keller's statenent t hat both issues are
i mportant, but for different reasons.

9:31: 04 AM

CHAI R SEATON reiterated that the bill actually addresses three
poi nt s. Furthernore, he reiterated that the intent of bringing
the bill forward is primarily for discussion and to create a
tenpl at e. He stated that [HB 206] should be considered an
omi bus bill. In response to Representative Edgnon, he

confirmed that there is not necessarily any intention to keep
the bill as "one package."

9:33:14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER wi t hdrew Anendnent 3. He asked about the
possibility of making subm ssions to the omnibus bill.

9:34: 01 AM

CHAIR SEATON said that would be appropriate. He offered his
understanding that there would be a conference held in the fall,
and he expressed his hope that the conmttee nenbers would
at t end.

9:34: 44 AM

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -17- April 15, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked if it is the intent of the commttee
that there not be a career assessnment in high school until the
twelfth grade, because that is the current |anguage in Version
E

9:35: 35 AM

CHAI R SEATON offered his understanding that current regulation
requires the assessnent to be given to eleventh graders, while
Version E would require it be given to twelfth graders. He
reiterated that the <crux of that portion of the proposed
legislation is to figure out how to keep students engaged
through their senior year. He opined that the HSQE is obsol ete,
and said that topic will come under further discussion with the
State Board of Education & Early Devel opnent.

9:37:55 AM

MR. JEANS, in response to a question from Representative W] son,
said there are between 6,000-8,000 students who graduate each
year in Al aska.

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON remarked that if [the career assessnent]
is required nore than once in high school, that would increase
the fiscal note.

9:38: 22 AM

CHAIR SEATON stated that concern about the fiscal note is
premature, and policy should be the focus. Nevert hel ess, he
poi nted out that the HSQE costs nobney, and another test could be
substituted for it.

9:38: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER said although there are problens with the
HSQE, he would not abandon it without a |lot of discussion. The
state has spent a lot of noney on it, and it provides data to
the state regardi ng performnce.

9:40: 04 AM
DAVI D ARP, Business Manager, Sitka School District, stated that
he was surprised to hear that the bill was structured as a

strategy to prevent drop-outs, because he was under the
inpression that the intent was to cone up wth tools for the

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 18- April 15, 2009



school district to use to "snmpoth out" its budgeting process.
Therefore, M. Arp said his only testinony at this point is to
ask the commttee to allow the school district to stay involved
in the process.

9:41: 03 AM

CHAI R SEATON invited M. Arp to provide any subsequent input via
e-mail .

9:42:12 AM

SAICHI OBA, Assistant Vice President of Student Services &
Enrol | ment Managenent, University of Alaska, concurred with M.
Barran's recomrendation that the [career assessnent] score be
included on the transcript. He stated that the University of
Al aska should receive test scores so that it can help students
who want to pursue a post-secondary education. In response to
Chair Seaton, he clarified that currently students who take
standardi zed tests in Al aska, including the Prelimnary
Schol astic Achi evenent Test (PSAT) and SAT, typically have those
scores sent to the institutions that they are considering

attending after high school. M. Qha related that the
University of Alaska has not worked wth WrkKeys vyet. He
conti nued:

If the student elects to send those on, then that
woul d wor k. However, if the scores aren't sent on by
the individual, then what |'m suggesting is that the
school or the district, or [DEED] thenselves, be
prepared to share the scores with the university, so
that we can help students who mght show sone
deficiency in college preparedness in an area of math
or witing for exanple. ... If we get that early
enough in their high school career, then we can offer
sonme type of guidance. If we only see it on their
final transcript as a senior, when they apply for
adm ssion, ... it's too late.

MR. OBA, in response to Chair Seaton, said students indicate to
whi ch schools they would like the PSAT or SAT scores sent when
they fill out the actual registration for the exam

9:46: 15 AM

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -19- April 15, 2009



VB. OLSON, in response to Chair Seat on, of fered her
understanding that the sane option does not appear on the
Wor kKeys score sheet as is on the PSAT and SAT.

9:46: 27 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked Ms. O son if a student has to send on his/her
Wr kKeys score to an institution, or if the institution can
contact the Departnent of Education that it has received an
application from sonmeone and ask for that person's score.

M5. COLSON indicated that she needs to look into federal privacy
i ssues to be able to answer that question.

CHAIR SEATON said these questions wll be highlighted for
further discussion.

9:47: 45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH questioned how exceptional students are
addr essed. He said the system should not be an inpedinent to
anyone.

MR. JEANS said he would look into that issue and respond at a
| ater date.

9:49:18 AM

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON provided a personal story of an
exceptional student at her district's | ocal school.

9:51: 26 AM
CHAI R SEATON summari zed t he achi evenents of the neeting.

[ HB 206 was hel d. ]

9:52:13 AM
ADJ QURNIVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Education Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 9:52 a.m

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 20- April 15, 2009



